ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 26, 2007
3:34 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Charlie Huggins, Chair
Senator Bert Stednan, Vice Chair
Senator Lyda Green

Senator Gary Stevens

Senator Lesil MGQiire

Senator Bill W el echowski
Senat or Thomas WAgoner

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

Presentation: Agrium Gasification Project
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No Action to report.

W TNESS REG STER

TI M JOHNSON, Project Manager

Agrium Bl ue Sky Gasification Project

Kenai, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented a coal gasification plan.

PAT GAMBLE, President

Al aska Railroad Corporation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Discussed the Alaska Railroad’s role in the
gasification project.

DONNA BOLTZ, Deputy Director

Port of Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Stated that the port is responding to
Agrium s needs.

DAN GRAHAM Consul t ant

SENATE RES COWM TTEE -1- February 26, 2007



Usi belli Coal M ne

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented infornati on on the coal source for
Agrium

Bl LL O LEARY, Chief Financial Oficer

Al aska Railroad Corporation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented information on financing the
Agrium proj ect.

Bl LL POPP

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough

Kenai, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in favor of the Agrium project.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR CHARLIE HUGGE NS called the Senate Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:34:22 PM Senators Geen,
Stevens, Wel echowski, Wagoner, Stedman, and Huggins were
present at the call to order.

Overview. Agrium gasification of coa

3:35:10 PM

TI M JOHNSON, Project Manager, Agrium Blue Sky Gasification, said
his goal today is to explain Agrium s operation in Kenai and the
situation that started Agrium | ooking at coal gasification. The
plant in Kenai is a fertilizer production facility that has been
operating alnost 40 years. It is the second |argest nitrogen
fertilizer facility in North Anmerica and produces ammonia and
urea fertilizer that is exported around the world. It was built
on stranded gas, he said. It is now facing a crisis in gas
supply--from an industrial -user standpoint. There is a declining
supply of large reserves, and the pricing structure is tied to a
“NYMEX-type” structure, and the overall supply of gas is forcing
i ndustry out of business, he stated. There is increasing demand
for residential users and a |arge anount of export of |iquefied
gas to Japan.

MR, JOHNSON said Agrium purchased the facility from Unocal in
2000, believing there was a long-term supply of gas in place
Then gas supplies began to decline. “W were in discussions with
Unocal and eventually settled.and that settlenent resulted in
our supplies under that Unocal contract being depleted in 2005.”

SENATE RES COWM TTEE - 2- February 26, 2007



He thanked the State of Alaska for its support of Agrium
i ncluding HB 57 and support for this Kenai Blue Sky project.

3:38:46 PM

MR JOHANSON said the standard picture for Alaska s Kena
nitrogen operations is consum ng about 53 billion cubic feet of
gas—year in and year out—and producing over 1.2 mllion tons of

fertilizer for export. The business started to suffer in 2001
when gas supplies started to decline. In 2004 Agrium announced
there would only be gas through 2005, and it shut down the first
urea production facility in Cctober, 2004. In 2005 it shut down
anot her ammnia plant. A total of 80 jobs have been cut since
then. In 2006 only two plants were operating, and those were
shut down in Cctober. The conpany hopes to start up by the end
of the first quarter of 2007 and has gas contracts through the
end of 2007, he said. There are no other contracts, but getting
one is a key part of Agrium s |ong-term operations.

3:40: 04 PM
MR. JOHNSON said the operation is built on having a long-term
supply of lowcost gas, and it will pursue gasification because

of the severe decline in Cook Inlet gas. The facility is |arge,
and without a gas supply past Cctober, 2007, it will no |onger
be able to operate. If it shuts down, over 400 jobs will be |ost
and there will be a loss of a substantial tax base for the Kena
Peni nsul a Bor ough

3:41: 02 PM
CHAI R HUGGE NS asked t he export volume in dollars.

MR. JOHNSON said it is $163 nillion. The gasification project
seeks to capitalize on the long-term supply of abundant coal
There is demand for |owcost power in Southcentral Alaska, and
there are 13 oil fields that are declining in Cook Inlet. He
said that studies by the Departnment of Energy indicate that up
to 300 mllion barrels of additional oil could be recovered by
supplying CO2 for enhanced oil recovery, which wll be nmade
avai l abl e through the gasification project. There are additional
opportunities for other byproducts. He showed a photo of the
plant, including the Kenai nitrogen operations, the Tesoro
refinery, the ConocoPhillips |liquid natural gas production
facility, and an open field where the new gasification and power
production conpl ex woul d be.

3:42:48 PM
MR. JOHNSON said the plan is to bring coal by rail from Healy or
el sewhere to Anchorage, and then a barge wll ship it from

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 26, 2007



there. There will be a new dock to receive the coal. The CX2
woul d be shipped to the oil fields in the area, excess power
woul d be sold to the grid, and the fertilizer would be exported
and supplied to Alaska. The new gasifier would convert coal and
air into the building blocks that are needed for fertilizer
production. The gasifier wll supply hydrogen, nitrogen, and CO2
to the fertilizer plant. A large power plant will be built and
supply at least 100 negawatts of power to the process and excess
power would go to the power grid.

3:45: 24 PM

MR. JOHNSON said the gasification process works by conbining
coal or any carbon source wth pure oxygen. That reaction
provides the building blocks needed for fertilizer. It expects

to need 3 mllion netric tons of coal for gasification and power
production. It will produce alnost 1.5 mllion tons of urea and
100,000 tons of ammonia, and it wll provide 70 negawatts of

power to the grid. The process is highly integrated, he said, so
the facilities nust be |ocated near each other. He said a phase-
one feasibility study is done. The conpany is working toward
desi gn and permtting.

3:47: 13 PM
CHAI R HUGE NS asked about the timefrane.

MR. JOHNSON said phase-two will be conpleted in the sunmer of

2008, construction will begin in the sumrer of 2009, and startup
should occur in late 2011. Phase one was a joint effort wth
Usi belli Coal, and Agrium has invested about $3 mllion, |ooking

at many sites, feedstock, and locations. It |ooked at design
variations trying to nmaximze the existing plants and taking
advant age of economies of scale. It determned it was feasible,
with the best design trying to maximze the urea production,
whi ch makes nore tons of fertilizer per ton of coal. At the sane
time the Departnent of Energy conducted a gasification study
with simlar results that gasification could be econom cal

3:49: 07 PM

MR, JOHNSON said Agrium is now in partnership wth Honer
Electric, which has the Jlead role in the power block
devel opnent, so they will go out and seek partners for a power
production facility. Agrium is doing due diligence on the
feedstock supply and is looking for a partner to finance the
gasification island. It needs to continue to find and secure
natural gas for the existing plant to maintain its personnel and
presence in Al aska.

SENATE RES COWM TTEE -4- February 26, 2007



3:50:49 PM

MR. JOHNSON said it is a viable project with nmany benefits to
Al aska and no environnental obstacles. The conpany is finalizing
its design and verifying the availability of feedstock. Agrium
will be screening the gasification partners who will conme in and
invest in the gasifier block itself.

3:51:48 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI spoke of the [imtation on nercury release
by coal plants under the Clean Air Act, and Al aska has been
al | ocated about 10 pounds per year.

MR. JOHNSON said the nercury rule is new, and there is a mnor
allocation for Alaska. There is litigation pending to chall enge
that allocation, and there is also a provision in the rule for a
trading program Agrium will try to mnimzed nmercury em ssions
by engineering and is <currently assessing the best nercury
scrubbing technologies. It is part of the evaluations, he said,
and the worst case would be the trade program

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if current transmssion lines are
sufficient for shipping Agriunm s excess power.

3:53: 44 PM

MR. JOHNSON said transmission on the Kenai is |limted to about
70 negawatts of export power, and so that is the anmpunt that
Agrium is considering. It will see if it can be comrercialized
and will be working with Homer Electric.

SENATOR WAGONER asked about the size of the power plant and how
much power will be used on site.

3:55:01 PM

MR. JOHNSON said the power plant is sized to be about 200
megawatts of electrical power, and roughly 120 negawatts woul d
be used to supply the air-separation unit, the gasifier, and the
existing fertilizer plant. There is also 85 nmegawatts of thernal
energy as steam so a total of about 300 negawatts is produced
and consuned by the process, and 70 negawatts woul d be exported.

SENATOR WAGONER asked how nuch gas is produced and put in
storage and not nmade avail able for Agrium

3:56:10 PM

MR, JOHNSON said there is gas going into storage, but he doesn’t
know how much

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 26, 2007



SENATOR WAGONER asked about ot her byproducts besi des CQ2.

MR, JOHNSON said the gasifier will produce slag or nolten ash
which is inert and can be used for road base or cinder bl ock.

3:57:12 PM
CHAI R HUGGE NS asked about usi ng Bel uga coal

MR, JOHNSON said Agrium | ooked at Beluga coal but found that the
Healy mne was a good fit. Healy is an existing mne in
operation with a rail link. Beluga is a |large resource, but not
in production. Both are options, but Healy is being used for the
feasibility studies.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked if it may be nore economcal to nove coa
fromthe Beluga mne in the distant future.

3:58:49 PM

MR. JOHNSON said Beluga coal is closer, but it has to overcone
the capital of starting up a new mne. It could becone the nost
economi cal, but that is difficult to project.

CHAIR HUGA NS said his inpression is that the cost of natura
gas is the biggest challenge for Agrium instead of supply.

MR. JOHNSON said the biggest challenge is supply. “W |ost
supply early in OCctober.” There wll eventually be a price
concern; the supply is the problem now.

CHAIR HUGE NS said, “So at present nmarket value in Cook Inlet,
if there was supply available, it would it work you?”

MR. JOHNSON sai d yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said if the Federal Energy Regulatory
Comm ssion (FERC) denied the LNG permt that is up in the comng
year, he asked what the inpact would be on Agriumis natural gas
supply. He asked him to conpare the costs of natural gas wth
shi ppi ng the coal

4:00: 38 PM

MR. JOHNSON said Agriumis still in negotiations with all of the
producers and trying to obtain gas. The supply of gas from the
North Slope wll be out of sync with the conmpany’ s tineline,

because it wants to be operating by 2011, and the gas line is
projected for 2015 at the earliest. The economes could be
conpared then

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 26, 2007



SENATOR WAGONER asked which has the |east price volatility.

4:02: 07 PM
MR. JOHNSON said coal is nuch nore stable, so if the capital
hurtle can be overcone for the gasification unit, there wll be

a stable cost of feedstock. Natural gas is nore volatile because
it is indexed to NYMEX, he stated.

CHAIR HUGE NS asked about cl ean coal and envi r onnent al
consi derati ons.

MR. JOHNSON said gasification is a very high energy process and
captures a lot of the inpurities, Iike sulphur and nercury.
Gasifying produces a clean feedstock for the fertilizer plant.
Agriumis trying to determne the ultimte source of firing for
the coal-fired power plant. The current coal-fired boiler would
be updated to be environnentally friendly. Al aska coal has |ow
sul phur so both gasification and power woul d be cl ean.

4:04:10 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI noted a report of nmercury in sonme of
Al aska’s fish, and he asked for assurance that the use of the
coal will not increase nercury in fish or wildlife.

MR,  JOHNSON said, “Qur initial evaluation was a detailed
environmental screening on the air quality emssions from the
project. The air quality em ssions wll be very high standard of
controls. In addition to the air quality, the bigger concern for
fish would be on the water side. And on the water side fromthe
gasification plant, anywhere coal is touching the process, we' Il
use a zero liquid discharge process to collect any wastewater
and treat it, so that there will not be a liquid discharge from
the coal gasification process and facilities. And that wll
greatly elimnate any chance or risk of mercury contam nation in
the water.”

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if mercury is released in the air and
br ought down by rain.

MR. JOHNSON said that is possible and that is why the conpany
wWll mnimze air emssions. One of the proposals for financing
the project includes the Al aska railroad’ s bonding ability.

4:06:12 PM

PAT GAMBLE, President, Alaska Railroad Corporation, said Agrium
contacted the railroad regarding coal transportation and

SENATE RES COWM TTEE -7- February 26, 2007



financing. The Al aska Railroad has access to tax-free bonding.
He has asked Agrium to provide technical information regarding
transportation. The Al aska Railroad issued the first segnment of

up to $165 mllion worth of bond already, he stated. It has a
financial teamto run the nodels of a project of this size. “W
are busy in direct response to Agriums questions,” he said.
Agrium has asked the Alaska Railroad to look at options |ike
Port MKenzie, Port of Anchorage, Seward, or building a railroad
track down to the site. “W are very nuch a part of this

di scussion with [Agrium at the present tine.”

4:08: 27 PM
SENATOR STEVENS asked about the option of extending the
railroad.

MR. GAMBLE said the analysis is not conplete, but the extension
to Kenai is not practical. The rail is already to the Port of
Anchorage and one can analyze the efficiencies--as the port
grows--of designing in the coal off-load capability. Another
option is extending the line near Wllow with a spur to the Port
of MKenzie. An off-load area could be designed into the port.
He noted that pile managenent is inportant. It is a significant
investnment, but the railroad is also working with the borough.
The railroad has “a good teami ng effort,” he stated.

4:10: 21 PM

SENATOR STEVENS stated that an efficient operation could be
added to the Seward facility, but a ship would then have to go
around t he peninsul a.

MR. GAMBLE said it is not difficult, but it is a tine and
di stance expense issue.

4:10: 50 PM
CHAIR HUGG NS said the corridor to Pt. MKenzie is attractive
“to some of us., but froma state’'s prospective it appears that-

-assuning sone growmh potential of the port—that places Ilike
Anchorage will probably, in the future, welcone this, maybe..But
when you cone to gas pipeline-sort of things, there’'s at |east
some potential to be able to haul from a port |ike that versus

through the Port of Anchorage.Wuld that be feasible, assum ng
sone rail hooking to the port at Pt. MKenzie?”

MR. GAMBLE said Port MHKenzie is expensive, but if that can be
overcone, there is a real opportunity to nove goods to tide
water that would be hard to nove all the way around to the Port
of Anchorage. He said there are a lot of resource products in

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 26, 2007



the interior that could go to an industrial MKenzie port. The
cont ai ner busi ness would grow and continue to cone into the Port
of Anchorage. He said, “lI think it’s well within the bounds to
de-conflict those and to optimze those so that you get the
advantage of both.” The Alaska Railroad has always felt that
conbining transportation, power, and data transmssion the
entrepreneurs conme out of the woodwork. He nentioned |inestone
and other resource opportunities that are not feasible now
because of transportation issues, and said that this would be a
great nove for the State of Al aska.

4:13:59 PM

CHAIR HUGEA NS said he thinks the Port of Anchorage sees this as
an interim “to make it work for Agrium-being a good neighbor,”
but it would prefer an alternative | ocation.

MR. GAMBLE said the idea needs a |ot of coordination, and al nost
begs for some sort of an authority so the entities are not in
conpetition for federal state dollars. If “the bridge” is in
there, it wll be a big player, he said.

4:15: 34 PM
DONNA BOLTZ, Deputy Director, Port of Anchorage, said the port
is in the third year of an internodal extension program and it

has extended the rail line onto port property. The expansion
proj ect supports Agriunmis construction tineline, she said. Last
year the port filled in an additional 21 acres and will continue

to work on the north end. It will be conpleted in 2008. She said
it has worked closely with Agriumin fitting its needs into the
port’s master plan. The facility and timng is very well
postured to support Agrium she added.

CHAI R HUGE NS asked about any concerns fromthe port.

M5. BOLTZ said it will take very close coordination, but wth
everything that Agriumhas laid out, “we can support this.”

4:17:27 PM
SENATOR GREEN asked about coal dust produced from the exchange
fromtrain to barge, and any inpact to the |ocal subdivisions.

4:18: 24 PM

DAN GRAHAM Consultant, Usibelli Coal Mne, said there will be
100 percent coverage and containnent for all steps from train
of f-1oading to the ship.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- February 26, 2007



MR. CGRAHAM said he works for Technical Field Services. The
proj ect | ooked at Beluga and Healy sources of coal, and they are

both very conpetitive, but Healy has anple reserves, it 1is
already pernmitted, it is capitalized, and it is only a Monday
through Friday operation, “and over half this additiona
capacity can be picked up just by adding staff and running the
equi pnent longer.” He is working with the railroad to get the

transportation costs under control, and the delivery from Healy
can be relied on for the 2011 tine period. Another big advantage
is that in 2003 the Alaska Energy Authority did a power study
for the rail belt, and one key conclusion was that the rail belt
was too dependent on gas-fired power and needed to diversify.
“This project, along with the project the [Mitanuska Electric
Association is] bringing forward, gets about halfway to their
recommendation of trying to diversify the power into the rai
belt using coal.” The |owest cost coal states in the country
have rates that are substantially |ower than other states, he
not ed.

4:22:17 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI asked what percentage the 70 negawatts of
power woul d be for the total Railbelt energy.

MR. GRAHAM said the total capacity in the rail belt is between
1000 and 1200 negawatts. A small percentage of that is coal.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what the cost per negawatt will be by
usi ng coal instead of natural gas.

MR. GRAHAM sai d Matanuska El ectric just released a study, and it
i s about 30-40 percent |lower for coal than natural gas.

4:23:39 PM
SENATOR STEDMAN asked about a break-even price of natural gas
where coal becones nore efficient for electrical generation.

MR. GRAHAM said the break-even point was around $2 or $2.50 per
mllion BTU, and now Cook Inlet gas is approaching $6 per
mllion BTU, so the breakeven point has been surpassed.

4:24. 44 PM
SENATOR WAGONER asked how many negawatts the Beluga generation
pl ant puts out.

MR, GRAHAM said about 358 negawatts, and that is one third of
the rail belt.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- February 26, 2007



CHAI R HUGGE NS asked about coal activity in the |ower 48.

MR. GRAHAM said he won’'t claim any expertise on the |ower 48
coal nmarkets.

CHAIR HUGGE NS asked if the state should be in hot pursuit of
gasification or if it is just a last resort.

MR. GRAHAM said Al aska has a trenmendous anount of coal, and if
gasification is solely for power generation, it may not be the
best option. In this case, where power is generated and the
products of gasification are used, it nakes sense, he stat ed.

CHAI R HUGA NS asked about the feasibility of the Agrium Blue Sky
project, and if it is feasible only under optinmum circunstances.

4:26:18 PM
MR. GRAHAM said the initial costing of the project attenpted to
avoid killing the project by having too many safety nets, and

“we didn't want to undercut ourselves and build optim zation in
early in the process. W tried to put it right down the mddle
of the best estimate that we could conme up with..”

MR. JOHNSON said every project will have its challenges and
opportunities, but this project has so many positives. There is
an existing facility without a feedstock source, and “that is a

great anchor.” There is a demand for |ow cost energy that is
using a declining source of natural gas. The project provides
ability for nore oil recovery, and it wll be done in an
environmental |y sensitive way. There are still challenges, *“but

for a gasification project, this has certainly got to be one of
the top projects around because so many things conme together
that are positive.”

CHAI R HUGGE NS asked how many jobs the project will create.

4:28:17 PM

MR, JOHNSON said the plus side is that the 250 current jobs wll
be retained, and it wll create nore jobs at the mne, the
railroad, and transportation infrastructure. There wll also be

1,000 to 1,400 construction jobs.
CHAI R HUGA NS asked about Homer Electric.

MR. JOHNSON said Homer Electric has signed on to be a partner
and is eager to find a way to nake the project work for its

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- February 26, 2007



cooperative. They are responsible for commercializing the power
that is sold under the grid. They are active and enthusi asti c.

4:29: 36 PM
SENATOR STEVENS asked about bonding the project and the inpacts
to the Al aska Railroad.

BILL O LEARY, Chi ef Fi nanci al Oficer, Al aska Railroad
Corporation, said the railroad has been working wth Agrium for
a nunber of nonths and trying to examne if there is an
opportunity for the Alaska Railroad to assist. Wen the Al aska
Railroad was transferred from federal ownership to state
ownership there was “a provision that we believe allows the
railroad to issue tax-exenpt bonds.” This is a powerful tool for
financing, he said. The financial team believes that it would be
allowed, but it has not been tested, so Agrium and the Al aska
Railroad could gain clarity on this. He thinks the inpacts to
the railroad would be positive. Using tax-exenpt debt would help
the economics if the Agrium project and provide the Al aska
Railroad with the transportati on piece.

4:32:34 PM
MR. GAMBLE added that the IRS determ nation gets nore solid as
the link between the railroad and the customer increases, so he

is working with Agrium to define that link, “and make it a no-
brainer” before taking it to the IRS. He said he is very
confident there will be no problem with the IRS. There are two

conponents for bonding, and one is partnering with Agrium on the
| arger project. Secondly, the Mit-Su Borough is interested in
getting the rail extended to Port MKenzie. One option on who

pays for what, 1is the railroad uses its tax-free bonding
capability for that as well, he expl ai ned.

4:34:02 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked the bond anount; if it would require
| egislative approval; and if the state will be liable for a
defaul t.

MR. O LEARY said the ambunt would be about $2.5 billion, and the
enabling statute requires legislative authorization. The basic
tenet of the financing is that it would be non recourse to the
Alaska Railroad and all debt issued by the Alaska Railroad is
not an obligation of the state. The obligation in a default
woul d be “the project.” Agrium or whatever structure it has set
up woul d be on the hook for paynent of the bonds.

4:35: 56 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- February 26, 2007



CHAIR HUGGA NS said he went through the same process |ast year,
and the statute made it clear that the state was not on the hook
for the noney.

SENATOR STEDVAN said he heard them say that it was a “riskless
bond.” But if it turns upside down, clearly it will inpact the
Al aska Railroad and any future expansion obligations.

MR. O LEARY said it would not reflect well on the Railroad, but
the actual obligation would not be to the Al aska Rail road.

4:37:12 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN said he understands the technical aspect of who
ends up holding the bag, but there is inpact when |ooking at
over $2 billion in bonds. The railroad will have other expansion
issues to deal wth, including a gas line. “So | wouldn’t
characterize it as riskless to the railroad,” he said.

MR. GAMBLE said there is a responsibility and the railroad would
be on board to the end of the term If there is a problem the

Al aska Railroad will be in court with everybody else. He said he
is confident that the Al aska Railroad would not be financially
liable. The railroad board will carefully exanm ne the risks. The

board is waiting for that next step.

4:39:16 PM
SENATOR STEVENS asked about the IRS and how long it will take.

MR. O LEARY said it starts with a private-letter ruling request
to the IRS to nmake the bonds marketable. The IRS would issue a
determnation within six nonths of a conplete application, but
the IRS determnes the conpleteness, so it can be a |engthy
process. The project nust |ook very real to the IRS because it
doesn’t rule on hypotheticals, he noted.

4:40: 37 PM
BILL POPP, Kenai Peninsula Borough, said this project is
inmportant to the Kenai Peninsula and the state for nmajor new

val ue- added opportunities. There coul d be t r emendous
opportunities rippling through the econony, including collateral
devel opnent like raising the level of expertise in the area. It

carries over into other industries. It is a very l|large project
and Agrium has taken up quite a task, but this technology is
gaining traction elsewhere, he stated. China has $70 billion
worth  of coal gasification facilities. Alaska has the
opportunity to be at the forefront of the technology and spin

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- February 26, 2007



of f other econom c opportunities for the southcentral region and
t he state.

CHAI R HUGGE NS asked about port facilities on the Kenai
MR. POPP said he doesn’t know Agriumis final plans, but sone

opportunities nmay be inproved dock and port facilities in the
Ni ki ski area. Port MKenzie is an addition to the infrastructure

base in Cook Inlet, he said. The dock facilities will be multi-
purpose and will lead to spin-offs that benefit the econony.
4:44:17 PM

CHAIR HUGGA NS said it is inportant for the state to |everage
addi tional coal marketing, which has trenmendous potential. “W
don’t use it, and we don't sell nuch of it,” he stated. Coal is

the third leg in the energy stool in Alaska. The state can't
turn its back on the potential for |everaging new infrastructure
to the future. “W don’t blindly issue bonds.but if we can tie
those three things together and sone of the other players, then
we're all a winner.”

4:46:18 PM
SENATOR WAGONER asked about the difference in the qualities of
Bel uga coal and Healy coal

MR. GRAHAM sai d they are identical and interchangeabl e.

The Senate Resources conm ttee adjourned at 4:47:16 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- February 26, 2007



